Escalation # SCR070103-01-E20

January 19, 2004

Liz Balvin

MCI

Dear Ms. Balvin:

This letter is in response to MCI Escalation # SCR070103-01-E20 regarding the MCI position that Qwest inappropriately denied to allow financial suspend orders to flow through for WA, OR, and ID-N, and that Qwest process two-way suspensions consistently across Qwest 14 state footprint.   The MCI issues, in blue font, raised in this escalation and the associated Qwest responses are as follow:

MCI Issue:

Qwest documented procedures URL: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/pcat/tdnpr.html states "State: Arizona, Colorado, Southern Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah, or Wyoming Switch Type: All Types Type of Restriction: Outgoing and incoming calls State: Northern Idaho, Washington or Oregon Switch Type: All Types except DMS Type of Restriction: Outgoing Only NOTE: For two-way temporary disconnects, you must issue your request manually and note in REMARKS "two-way denial". State: Northern Idaho, Washington or Oregon Switch Type: DMS Type of Restriction: Outgoing and incoming calls".

NOTE: Qwest provides ability to order two-way suspensions in the Western Region on a manual basis.

Qwest Response:

Qwest agrees that the information in the Temporary Disconnection for Non-payment/Restore PCAT is not clear and (for WA and OR) is incorrect (see #2 below).  To clarify, in states other than WA and OR, where two-way suspensions are allowed and provided, the process for requesting two-way suspensions is as described in the PCAT.  Qwest will update the PCAT to both clarify the process and application for two-way suspensions and correct the PCAT relative to the regulatory restrictions for WA and OR, (see the next Qwest Response below).

MCI Issue:

Upon receipt of MCI's change request to systematically allow the ordering of two-way suspensions, Qwest not only denied the CR based on retail tariff language but is expected to update the above documentation such that CLECs cannot order entirely. Qwest stated "This compliance entails revisions of the PCAT language as well as revision to methods regarding the manual process for 2-way suspensions. The revision to methods has been completed and the revision to the PCAT is in progress" (email from Qwest 11/18/03).

Qwest Response:

As indicated by Michelle Thacker on December 17, 2003, and subsequently provided via email on December 18, 2003 and documented in the CMP CR, the PCAT document located on URL: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/pcat/tdnpr.html, is incorrect and will be revised to reflect the OR and WA state regulatory requirements of only allowing one-way suspensions of service except in DMS10 and DMS 100 switches where only two-way suspensions are technically feasible.

MCI Issue:

MCI Interconnect Agreements (ICA's) state "Access to Unbundled Local Switching encompasses line-side and trunk-side facilities, plus the features, functions, and capabilities of the Switch. The features, functions, and capabilities of the Switch include the basic switching function, as well as the same basic capabilities that are available to Qwest's End User Customers.  Unbundled Local Switching also includes access to all vertical features that the Switch is capable of providing, as well as any technically-feasible customized routing functions" (SGAT section 9.11.1.1)" Thus, when ordering UNE-P POTS, MCI's ICA's apply, not Qwest retail tariff.

Qwest Response:

The switch capability associated with two-way suspensions is not currently listed/identified as a UNE in either existing Interconnection Agreements or Qwest’s SGAT.  In addition, based on WA and OR state regulatory rules, Qwest is prohibited from providing two-way suspensions to customers in the states of WA and OR except in DMS10 and DMS100 switches which are technically limited to a two-way suspension switch functionality.  

MCI Issue:

In addition to MCI's ICA's, the FCC regulations require Qwest to provide MCI all the features and functions of the switch when we buy switching unbundled network elements (UNEs) (47 CFR Section 51.319(c)(1). Qwest denial states "Although the switch may have capability of two-way denial, the State Commission does not allow for this practice." (12/30/03 Email from Qwest) Please note, this restriction applies to Qwest retail ONLY, not wholesale whereby contract language supercedes.

Qwest Response:

Qwest continues to recommend that MCI pursue two-way suspensions in OR and WA by way of the Special Request Process (SRP).  A SRP request would determine if two-way suspensions are technically feasible in the switches in OR and WA, and would result in an ICA amendment that would go before the OR and WA state commissions for review/approval.  This would bring the issue of OR and WA’s current position on two-way suspensions to those state commissions for either approval for MCI and Qwest to move forward in establishing this capability or would result in a continued denial of MCI’s request (assumedly for the same reasons those state commissions do not allow Qwest to do two-way suspensions in those states).   

MCI Issue:

Qwest inappropriately denied MCI's change request SCR070103-01.  Not only is Qwest denying the systematic means to order two-way suspension but intends to eliminate the ability to order on a manual basis, restricting CLECs all together.

Qwest Response:

Qwest does not agree that the denial of MCI’s change request SCR070103-01 is inappropriate.  In addition, Qwest is not “eliminating the ability to order on a manual basis”; Qwest is correcting information in the PCAT that is currently incorrect.  The ability to order two-way suspensions on a manual basis will remain intact and the PCAT will be corrected to reflect the exceptions for OR and WA (non-DMS10 and DMS100 switches) where this capability is not available.

MCI Issue:
MCI contracts and FCC regulations require that Qwest provide all features available with a particular switch.  What this means is that MCI is not limited to what Qwest provides its retail customers. MCI must be provided access to existing features to be able to innovate and provide competition to our customers. Thus, Qwest cannot restrict two-way suspensions.

Qwest Response:

Qwest does not agree that we are arbitrarily restricting two-way suspensions or otherwise not providing MCI with access to features in a particular switch.   To summarize Qwest’s position:

· Two-Way Suspensions are not currently identified as a UNE in either the ICA or SGAT.

· Due to regulatory constraints in OR and WA, Qwest is prohibited from providing two-way suspensions in those states, with the specific exception of DMS10 and DMS100 switches.

· MCI has the opportunity to pursue this switch capability through the SRP, obtain this function as a UNE, if approved, and bring to closure the issues associated with the OR and WA regulatory limitations.

In conclusion, the request to allow financial suspend orders to flow through for WA, OR, and ID-N, and that Qwest process two-way suspensions consistently across Qwest’s 14 state footprint will remain in deny status. 

Please contact me by telephone at (303) 965-3709, or by e-mail at Loretta.A.Huff@qwest.com if you have any additional questions.

Sincerely,

Loretta Huff

Senior Director/Wholesale Service Delivery
Qwest

